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RPXE  FELE

Pursues progress while maintaining sound, to achieve steady and

long-term operations

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “year” or the
“year under review”) for your review.

Complicated and ever-changing international landscape
appeared in 2023. Under the combined effect of trade
protectionism, geopolitical conflicts and intensified regional
wars, global economy remain sluggish. In China, the year
of 2023 was a recovery year following the diminishing
COVID-19 prevention and control measures. China’s
economy has stepped out of a recovery curve to pick up
despite of continuous pressure. Confronted with complicated
environment, the Group continued to adhere to the principle
of “sound, steady and long-term operations” and engaged
in its business in a steady and proactive manner to adapt to
the market conditions, so as to ensure a sound development
and to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,421,454,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB1,259,5679,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 12.9%; high-end consuming accessories business
recorded revenue of RMB710,708,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB630,330,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
12.8%; international commodity trading recorded revenue
of RMB710,746,000 (31 December 2022: RMB408,956,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 73.8%. The Group
recorded a net profit of RMB35,191,000 (31 December 2022:
loss of RMB88,139,000) and profit attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB33,885,000 (31 December
2022: loss of RMB80,022,000). The Group achieved higher
profit was mainly attributable to the improvement of gross
profit and the discontinuation of the watch business, which
led to a significant decrease in the inventory provision and
operating expenses of the watch business.
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During the year under review, China's economy began to
recover following the diminishing COVID-19 prevention
and control measures. In terms of high-end consuming
accessories business, the Group is stability-rooted and
pursues development through innovation. The Group has
taken various measures to address the complex business
environment, including continuously diversifying business
models and enhancing informational and automatic
management, which have brought forth remarkable
effectiveness. During the year, revenue and profit from
high-end consuming accessories business have improved
significantly compared with the same period last year.

During the year under review, in response to the rise in
mineral sand prices, the Group’s international commodity
trading business steadily trended upward, with both its sales
and profits improving over the same period last year. In
2023, the global bulk shipping industry remained seasonal
volatility. The Group has always maintained its prudent
and steady business strategy by insisting on customers
oriented and ensuring the safety of ship navigation as its
seized new opportunities to expand its business. In addition
to deepening its efforts in the traditional shipping routes,
the Group opened up a coal shipping route from Colombia
to South Korea for the first time, which contributed to the
Group’s positive returns. During the year, the Group’s
revenue from the shipping business increased and kept
positive returns despite the overall profits recorded a
decrease.

The Group’s core values of “respect, commitment,
cooperation and innovation” have enabled us to build a solid
foundation for corporate governance and fulfillment of social
responsibilities. Believing that business coexists as a part
of society and prospers along with it, the Group, apart from
its efforts in achieving business results and creating brand
value, has been improving its social values by protecting the
environment, managing environmental quality, conserving
resources and developing talents. The Group also actively
participated in public welfare activities with an aim of
growing together and sharing with the community.
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At present, the global political situation is experiencing
a high degree of unrest, making the global economy
more perplexing and the business environment remain
complicated and grim. China’s economy is struggling for
recovery amid external instability and uncertainties as well
as internal challenges. However, it is undisputed that the
economy will recover and achieve growth in long run. With
multiple measures implemented by the Chinese government
to promote stability and progress, it is believed that the
momentum of Mainland China’s economic development will
continue to strengthen with sustainable growth.

In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to keep
abreast of the market trend and further advance the process
of international trade steadily. Additionally, the Group
will continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to become a stronger participant in the
international shipping supply chain and achieve new
breakthroughs in corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadutification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE e E

R RERRE BUAPETZBERE -
RBERTREE MR M EERBIKAEHERK
% o BN EIRE TR RS - BRT
SN A RE R THEEE I BFBERDE
R EH N EAME - ER - PEKLER TR
i REAFNERNBERENRE -BETE
B M8 kg - DOERIE] MR ABURE T
BEMN  BETPEAMLEERESSELR
58 - BRETBIFERL -

e —F  AEB{BERE [1TIR8UE - HEK
21 Z2RE - BERBERM (R SRE - R
Bl EBERRIRE - BlMS - BRmEZit
HEBIRE Z IR - X% 7T 800k EE
REZENRENEEESEEXY  SHKE -
NERGEFSERERETREN—8 - B3R
ERBUENER -

SETMDEIRET SRR BRFTERMLNE
MRE™TS THRABEEZHE —BIERBEK
FRABRSREREEEMNEE  RKRF
BRZTIENEBER  NRSHEBREL
EERE thmETFREEMSHLEERAR
HHHR BEXEEECREBEBRELEE
RECRBERS  EMAXASHHEERES
RESER RISk A — BB LIRAS -

FRABERA R AR R ZAEAER 5



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREHREE

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support
and to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, building up of high-end consuming
service platforms, international commodity trading and its
related supply chain services.

High-end Consuming Accessories Service

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for high-
end consuming accessories manufacturing, mainly covering
the manufacturing of watches,
accessories and packaging products, commercial space
design, production and decoration. The companies are
mainly located in Suzhou, Guangzhou and Dongguan.

jewellery, cosmetics and

The two companies, “Guangzhou Artdeco” and “Dongguan
Born Talent”, mainly produce high-end watch boxes and
watch accessories for various types of watches. After years
of development, we have achieved great success in all
aspects. We have transitioned from low-end products to
high-end products, from simple processing to independent
innovative designs, and from purely handmade to products
automated.

“Suzhou Henge” is a commercial space integration
service enterprise engaged in design, production, on-site
installation and after-sales service, comprising the design
and decoration for each type of counters, props and various
stores.

After years of development, all companies under the Group
have achieved ISO9000 quality management certification,
which provides strong support for the manufacturing
of high-quality products; the companies have earned a
solid reputation in their respective fields, forming tight
relationships, mutual trust and interest sharing with brand
suppliers. Moreover, a wide customer base covering China,
Switzerland, the United States and other countries in the
Asia Pacific region has been established. The application
of advanced information management systems, such as the
industry-leading ERP, BIM, and MES, provides practical
guarantee for efficient and compliant corporate operation.
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During the year under review, in terms of high-end
consuming accessories business, the Group took various
measures in order to respond to the difficult operating
environment under the backdrop of the economic
resurgence in China. The Group laid a solid foundation
by maintaining stability, sought development driven by
innovation, and continuously broadened its business modes.
While engaging in sectors including accessories, jewellery,
cosmetics and mobile phones, the Group continued
focusing on its advantages in the field of watch accessories,
watch boxes, showcases production and exhibition service.
Additionally, the Group continued to improve its informational
and automatic management. All measures mentioned
above achieved remarkable results. During the year, good
performance was recorded for both the revenue and profits

of high-end consuming accessories business.

In the new year, the Group will adapt to market changes
and adjust such businesses as appropriate,
strengthening the industrial management together with

further

technical R&D and innovation, taking quality as the priority
and driving growth by innovation. We will continue to seek
opportunities to conduct vertical and horizontal industry
integration of products, so as to maintain and improve
our leadership in the industry. The Group will focus on
expanding the development in manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, and engage in deeper cooperation
with brands and international counterparts in various ways.
The Group will continue to enhance the service standard
of its integrated services for commercial space in Mainland
China and international markets. The Group will also fully
embark on a limited number of diversified business activities
to capitalize on the potential of the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle
products such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones,
and to expand its commercial space beautification services
to include living space beautification services, striving to
become an indispensable independent segment in the
global industry ecological chain of high-end consumption.
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International Trading

During the year under review, in accordance with the
established strategy, the Group continued to carry out the
international commodity trading business. During the year,
the business mainly covered the importation of iron ore,
thermal coal and coking coal to Mainland China. In response
to difficult operating environment, the Group actively
adapted to the market dynamics and accordingly made
flexible and precise delivery as much as possible, in order
to increase sales and decrease costs. Since international
commodity trading business was on a steady upward trend
due to efforts from various parties, its sales and profits both
improved as compared to the same period last year.

In the new year, the Group will continue to keep abreast of
the market and carry out international commodity trading
activities as appropriate in a prudent manner in order to
lay a solid foundation for the Group’s healthy operation and
development.

International Shipping

During the year under review, in line with the Group’s
established strategic direction and the development of its
international trading business, the Group continued the in-
depth development of its international shipping business
which mainly focused on global maritime transportation of
dry bulk cargo, such as steel, coal, iron ore, manganese
ore, food and industrial salt.

In 2023, the global shipping market for dry bulk cargo
maintained seasonal fluctuations. Our shipping company
therefore adhered to its prudent and sound operating
strategies, and seized every favorable opportunity to expand
its business while keeping the customer service as the core
and prioritizing the shipping safety. Since the resumption
of coal importation from Australia to China at the beginning
of the year, the Group has successively secured new
customers with large importation of Australian coal, including
Yankuang Energy Group Company Limited and Jidong
Cement Co., Ltd. in order to address the transportation
demand of Australian coal from major customers. In
addition to engaging in original traditional transportation
routes, the Group initiated its first coal transportation
route from Colombia to South Korea, the revenue of which
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significantly outperformed the shipping market in the same
period. At the same time, the Group continued to maintain
good communication and cooperation with major central
enterprises and state-owned enterprises in China which
have concentrated overseas large-scale mining and import
businesses. By doing such, the Group overcame difficulties
and strived for development. During the year, the Group’s
revenue from the shipping business increased and kept
positive returns despite the overall profits recorded a
decrease. The shipping business made positive contribution
to the Group’s healthy operation and future development.

With China being a major importer of bulk raw materials in
the world, although there are certain uncertainties in global
economy growth and demand from China, the fundamentals
of long-term upward trend of Chinese economy remain
unchanged. In the coming year, our shipping company will
maintain its prudent and optimistic attitude to keep align with
the market and continue its expansion in China’s shipping
market, so as to provide existing customers with better-
quality shipping service. At the same time, maintaining our
prudential and stable operating strategy, the Group will
also explore new customers, new cargoes and new routes
to enhance the Company’s vessel capacity and market
competitiveness, so as to achieve robust profit growth.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may be other risks and uncertainties unknown to the
Group or not material at present but could become material
in the future.

Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose a
particularly adverse effect on the sale of high-end products.
As a service provider of high-end brands, if our strategies
are unable to predict or adapt to the changes, the Group
may suffer from uncertainty risk. In this regard, the Group
will closely monitor the market and revise our strategic
approaches from time to time in order to put us on track for
healthy growth and mitigate potential impacts of risks on the
business.
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Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers
no longer appoint the Group as their service provider, or
there arise quality issues regarding their services, there will
be a risk that the Group’s operating results may fluctuate
vigorously. The Group has maintained good cooperative
relationships with many international brand suppliers, so
that the risk of reliance on any single brand supplier can
be reduced, which leads to the continuous health of the
Group’s business.

The Group is currently engaged in the international trading
business. Factors as price trends of trading products or
changes in customer demands are beyond our control and
any adverse changes in such factors could have material
adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.
Therefore, the Group will monitor the international situation,
the price trends of products and customer demands closely
to reduce the risks therefrom.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortage or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is, in general, the duty of
each functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an
impact on our operating results and earnings.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
operating procedures, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
The Internal audit department will identify and assess
major operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate countermeasures. Take
inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.

12 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that the Group’s earnings
and capital or the ability to achieve the desired business
goals may be adversely affected by changes in exchange
rates and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
of meeting its contractual obligation when it falls due. In
managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and
maintains adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the
supply of funds for the Group’s operations and to reduce the
impact of fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Recruiting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits as well as various
incentives to attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs
of corporate development.

OUTLOOK

At present, the global political situation is experiencing
a high degree of unrest, making the global economy
more perplexing and the business environment remain
complicated and grim. China’s economy is struggling for
recovery amid external instability and uncertainties as well
as internal challenges. However, it is undisputed that the
economy will recover and achieve growth in long run. With
multiple measures implemented by the Chinese government
to promote stability and progress, it is believed that the
momentum of Mainland China’s economic development will
continue to strengthen with sustainable growth.
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In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to keep
abreast of the market trend and further advance the process
of international trade steadily. Additionally, the Group
will continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to become a stronger participant in the
international shipping supply chain and achieve new
breakthroughs in corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadutification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations that have major
impacts on the business and operation of the Group for
the year. Also, the Group has complied with such laws and
regulations in all major respects covering sale of products,
protection offered by online platforms to brand suppliers,
labor standards, environment protection and anti-corruption
and bribery prevention policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,421,454,000 (2022: RMB1,259,579,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 12.9%; the revenue
from high-end consuming accessories business amounted
to RMB710,708,000 (2022: RMB630,330,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 12.8%; the revenue from
commodity trading amounted to RMB710,746,000 (2022:
RMB408,956,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
73.8%.

Breakdown of revenue: (for the year ended 31 December)
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High-end Consuming Accessories SIEHERE 710,708 50.0 630,330 50.0
Commodity Trading AREmES 710,746 50.0 408,956 32.5
Watches Trading* BB 5B - - 220,293 17.5
Total Bt 1,421,454 100 1,259,579 100

The Group liquidated its remaining watch stocks and
completely ceased its renowned watch operations during
2022, and accordingly, the revenue of watches trading
during the year under review was nil.

Commodity Trading
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Hif* AEEEBE-_S-_—FERYFSBRMNERE
TFETTERE  2HEART REEBHE
2 HOBEFERNERESHBART o

High-end Consuming
Accessories
BimHERE
50.0%

= VO R

FRAERA RAT R =44 15



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEREE

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB215,265,000 (2022:
RMB94,174,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 128.6%. Gross profit margin was approximately 15.1%
(2022: 7.5%), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.6
percentage points. The increase in gross profit and gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to the fluctuations in
commodity trading prices and a significant decrease in the
inventory provision as a result of the discontinuation of the
watch business.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a profit of RMB35,191,000 during the
year (2022: loss of RMB88,139,000), representing a year-
on-year increase of 139.9%. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB33,885,000 (2022: loss of
RMB80,022,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
142.3%. The main reason for the increased profit for the year
was the improvement in gross profit and the discontinuation
of the watch business, which led to a significant decrease in
the inventory provision and operating expenses of the watch
business.
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Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial
position. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total
equity of RMB3,245,634,000 (2022: RMB3,219,834,000)
and net current assets of RMB1,855,619,000 (2022:
RMB2,064,563,000), with cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with bank of RMB1,309,252,000 (2022:
RMB1,322,888,000) and total bank loans of RMB94,136,000
(2022: RMB81,721,000). As at 31 December 2023, bank
loans bearing interests at floating rates of 2.3% to 3.7%
(2022: 2% to 3.7%). As at 31 December 2023, approximately
80% (2022: 67%) and 20% (2022: 33%) of bank loans
were denominated in RMB and NTD, respectively. The
maturity profile of bank loans is set out in note 23 to the
accompanying financial statements. During the year under
review, there was no sign of significant changes in the
Group’s demand for loans in a particular quarter.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total debt amounted
to RMB94,136,000 (2022: RMB81,721,000). The net debt to
equity ratio of the Group was zero (2022: zero) (Net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowing) less cash and cash equivalents). It established
a solid foundation for the further business expansion of the
Group.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and
monitors risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide financing facilities, and reviews its funding
liquidity and financing needs regularly.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in HKD,
RMB and USD. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risks. During the year under review, the Group
has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk and
will adopt a foreign exchange hedging policy for significant
foreign exchange risks.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB179,902,000 (2022: RMB187,885,000)
pledged as security for mortgage.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023,
contingent liabilities (2022: nil).

the Group had no material

Current assets

As at 31 December 2023, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,170,351,000 (2022:
RMB2,339,060,000), comprising inventories of approximately
RMB258,115,000 (2022: RMB237,768,000), trade and
other receivables of approximately RMB558,072,000 (2022:
RMB703,627,000), loans to associates of approximately
RMB33,789,000 (2022: RMB67,273,000),
equivalents and deposits with banks of approximately
RMB1,309,252,000 (2022: RMB1,322,888,000).

cash and cash

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 19% (2022: 25%), 49% (2022: 58%) and 32%
(2022: 17%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.
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Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2023,
Group amounted to approximately RMB314,732,000
(2022: RMB274,497,000), comprising bank loans of
approximately RMB76,653,000 (2022: RMB56,799,000),
trade and other payables of approximately RMB226,920,000
(2022: RMB201,935,000), lease liabilities of approximately
RMB8,313,000 (2022: RMB10,802,000) and current taxation
of approximately RMB2,846,000 (2022: RMB4,961,000).

the current liabilities of the

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital,
December 2023, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,404,018,959 shares (2022: 4,404,018,959 shares),
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB3,164,782,000
(2022: RMB3,140,286,000) in total.

reserves and accumulated profits. As at 31

Significant investment,
disposal

material acquisition and

The Company has no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year under review, except as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
the Company did not hold other significant investments
during the year under review.
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SIGNIFICANT PROPERTIES HELD FOR EAXRE#EREYE
INVESTMENT

Particulars of the Group’s significant properties held for AKER-ZE=_=F+-_H=1T—HZEKXH
investment purpose as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:  {EREMZE 2 FFIBEEINOT :

Address Existing Use Land Use Period

ikl A% b 358158 FIHA PR

Unit No. 2701 on 27th Floor, Commercial Commencing from 31 August 2004 to 30
Building 1, Court No. 86, Jianguo Road, August 2074

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

R [EES —EENENA=ZT—HEREZZELHFNA
It RmEGE =& o=l

22 B 8655 Pt 15748

272701

Unit No. 2801 on 28th Floor, Commercial Commencing from 31 August 2004 to 30
Building 1, Court No. 86, Jianguo Road, August 2074

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

A s BE-ZEENFNA=1+—HBE_FTtWFENA
e R =

ZE L8655 157 1E

282801

The above properties were acquired by the Group by way of  F#l¥ZE I AREBEBRIABREUNERBAR
judicial auction at a total consideration of RMB140,016,408.  #140,016,408 7048 - #1552 M A A7 A
For details, please refer to the announcement of the HIA-ZTE-_=FN\A=B2Z2R % ZEAL[A
Company dated 3 August 2023 and titled “Discloseable EBRAZHENRNBZEMEZETEER
Transaction in relation to the Acquisition of Properties by 5] -

Judicial Auction”.

As at 31 December 2023, the properties were held for RZZE=_=F+=-—A=+—0H ' ZEWEH

investment purpose and might be leased out for rental {E&&ERE @ WAIAERN B & H AR I
income in the future. A e
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THE COMPANY

During the year, the Group’s business was primarily focused
on the manufacturing of high-end consuming accessories,
the construction of high-end consuming service platforms,
international commodity trading and its related supply chain
services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the accompanying
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,192,072,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,180,497,000),
which is set out in note 28 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, the
Group’s current and future operations, liquidity position
and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions
under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review
the dividend policy from time to time and may exercise at
its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend, and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 89 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF
SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (2022: repurchased 60,788,000
shares).

As of 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,404,018,959 shares (31 December 2022:
4,404,018,959 shares).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share award scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company to recognize
the contributions of certain participants to the Company
and to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Company.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participant, for participation in the Share Award Scheme
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the
awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants.
Among which:
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The “Participant” refers to (i) any senior management
employee, including without limitation the director, executive
officer and manager-grade employee, whether full time or
part time, employed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time; and (ii) any consultant employed by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries;

The “Excluded Participant” refers to (i) at the time of
the proposed grant of an award under the Share Award
Scheme, any Participant whose service in the Company
or its subsidiaries (as the case may be) does not exceed
one year from the expiry date of his or her probationary
period as stated in his or her employment contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries (as the case may be), or (ii) any
Participant who is resident in a place where, in the view of
the Board or the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) (as the case may be), the grant, vesting and/
or settlement of the awarded shares pursuant to the terms
of the Share Award Scheme at the time of the proposed
grant, vesting and/or settlement is not permitted under the
laws and regulations of such place, or compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations of such place makes it
necessary or expedient to exclude such Participant.

The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected Participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the selected Participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected Participant under the Share Award
Scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
or such number of shares as determined by the Board from
time to time.
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There is no minimum vesting period for the awarded shares
awarded under the Scheme, provided that the Board shall
have absolute discretion to determine the vesting conditions
for any awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme does not
require the grantees who are awarded the awarded shares
to accept the awards within a prescribed time period, but
in the event that the Company receives a rejection letter
within three (3) business days from the date of the offer
letter issued for the awarded shares, the Company’s offer to
the grantees shall for all intents and purposes be deemed
withdrawn from the outset as if no offer letter had ever been
issued.

If the Company decides to award the awarded shares
to the Participant under the Share Award Scheme, the
Company will instruct the Trustee to acquire the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, and the Trustee
will transfer such awarded shares to the Participant upon
vesting. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the persons who are awarded the awarded
shares to the Company or the Trustee. For the avoidance of
doubt, all awarded shares awarded and to be awarded are
existing shares of the Company, and no new shares will be
issued for the Share Award Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the tenth
anniversary date of the adoption date or such date of early
termination (whichever is earlier) as determined by the
Board.

During the year, the Company did not grant any awarded
shares to the employees of the Group (2022: nil). As of
the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
of the Company available for award under the Share
Option Scheme was 435,437,095 shares, representing
approximately 9.89% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.
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Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2015, the share option scheme was adopted
conditionally. The share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted to grant options to
selected participants including but not limited to directors
and employees of the Group as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the adoption date, with a remaining
life of approximately two years as of the date of this annual
report.

Under the Share Option Scheme, subject to the discretion
of the directors, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Each option
has a maximum valid period of ten years after which the
option shall lapse. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options (including share
options exercised and outstanding) granted to the eligible
participants in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options to such
participant which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares issued by the Company,
must be subject to separate approval by shareholders,
with such participant and his or her close associates (or
associates (if such participant is a connected person))
abstaining from voting. The exercise price shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the grantee shall accept
the option within ten days from the date of the offer to grant
the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the option.

As of the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 478,437,095 shares, representing
10.86% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company, and there was no option outstanding (2022: nil).
During the year under review, the Company also did not
grant any option (2022: nil).

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

under review and as of the date of this report, none of the
Directors were considered to have any interests in any
business which competed or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group required to
be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years. The Company did not enter into service contracts
that cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has

entered into any service agreement with any member of the
Group.
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REMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors, among others, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices.

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year, save as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report and related party transactions disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements, no Directors
or any entities connected with Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, subsisted during the year under review.

Save as described in this annual report, during the year
under review, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in note 7 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in note 8 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during
the year under review are set out in note 31(a) to the
accompanying financial statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

= The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

7 The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

— The Directors and the eligible employees shall
be granted with options or awarded shares of the
Company as determined by the Board to be part of
their remuneration package.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 25 to the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director and
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Approximate

Chief Executives Nature of Interest Number of shares Percentage
(Note 3)
EERBETHRAEHS EHEME BB AR KNAEDLE
(K1723)
Mr. Zhang Yuping Interest of Controlled Corporation
and Beneficial Owner (Note 1)
R F SR A ZEGEBESEERESA (KiE1) 748,902,047 8% (L) 17.00%
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony Interest of Controlled Corporation
and Beneficial Owner (Note 2)
SRKBE A REtEEEa R ESER A (Hi22) 704,643,034/% (L) 16.00%
Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner
EmOKELAE Gt TN 56,172,800/%(L) 1.28%
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan Beneficial Owner
e R E ERERA 5,920,000/% (L) 0.13%
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.

Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth International Limited ( “Best
Growth™ ), which in turn held 657,178,447 shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023. During the year
under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 91,723,600 shares
of the Company under his name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Yuping was interested in a total of 748,902,047 shares of
the Company, representing 17.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 2:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued
share capital of Empire Charm Limited ("Empire Charm"),
which in turn held 704,643,034 shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2023. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung
Wing Lun Tony was interested in 704,643,034 shares of
the Company, representing 16.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 3:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors and chief
executives of the Company were aware, as at 31 December
2023, none of the Directors and chief executives had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO);
and were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As far as the directors were aware, as at 31 December
2023, the interests or short positions of the persons in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Approximate

Percentage

Name of Shareholder Number of shares (Note 2)
KADL

RERHH R #E (Kizt2)
Best Growth International Limited
FIEEIFR AR A A 657,178,4478%(L) 14.92%
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1)
SREIF T (Afat1) 748,902,047 % (L) 17.00%
Empire Charm Limited
EHRAR AT 704,643,0348%(L) 16.00%
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Note 2)
SRKBE ST (Afat2) 704,643,0348%(L) 16.00%
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (47:£3) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group Limited (#7:£3) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.
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Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital

of Best Growth International Limited, which in turn held
657,178,447 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2023. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping
held 91,723,600 shares of the Company under his name.
Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping was interested in a total of
748,902,047 shares of the Company, representing 17.00%
of the issued share capital.

Note 2:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued

share capital of Empire Charm Limited, which in turn
held 704,643,034 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony
was interested in 704,643,034 shares of the Company,
representing 16.00% of the issued share capital.

Note 3:These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of and

registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group (Hong
Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire issued
share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited
was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group Limited.
The Swatch Group Limited was taken to be interested in
all the shares held by The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited under the SFO.

Note 4:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had

any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company which were required to be recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Equity-Linked
Agreements” above, at no time during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2023 was the Group, holding
company of the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements which enabled the Directors (including their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year
under review.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there had been
no contract or service contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 44 to 61 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, environmental
protection has been regarded as one of its top corporate
governance priorities by the Company. The Company
implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation
in its daily operations to strive to protect the environment
and conserve energy, with a view to promoting harmonious
development in terms of economic, social and ecological
benefits, which has achieved significant results.
Environment, social and governance report of the Company
is set out on pages 62 to 88 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has always been committed to advocating
the “people-oriented” core culture and strives to practice
an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering
responsibility, close collaboration and ongoing innovations”.
We will continue to utilise this philosophy as the cornerstone
of both our corporate management and corporate social
responsibility policies. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had a total of 1,467 (2022: 1,565) employees in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia.

The Group has always been committed to developing and
adding value to human resources. The Group implements
a standard recruitment system and allocates resources
to various kinds of training for our managers, front-line
service staff and maintenance technicians, which covers,
among others, the art of management, sales skills, brand
knowledge and service awareness, with an aim of enhancing
knowledge, marketing skills and service capabilities of our
staff and assisting them in their continuous improvement and
development.
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The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, as well as regularly
reviews the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with
corporate development needs. Options and awarded shares
are granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment. Meanwhile, the Group also offers various
other benefits to its employees, including pension plans,
mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance scheme,
housing and meal allowances.

Under a solid human resource assurance system, the
Group is enabled to create a high level of harmony among
employees of different nationalities and cultural backgrounds
under one shared vision.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with brand suppliers and various retailers.
Backed by our partners’ wide and strong support, our
operations have been able to achieve mutually beneficial,
harmonious and win-win development. During the year
under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers and customers. For
further details of relationships between the Company and
its employees, suppliers and customers, please refer to the
Company’s environment, social and governance report set
out on pages 62 to 88 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year
under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

FEREFRMHAER
REBFER  RAAEBIBHEFHRES
ZRBRHEDBEBERERBRATSLMT :

Purchase £RHE

— the largest supplier — mARER

— five largest suppliers combined — AAHEREET
Sales HE

— the largest customer — AR

— five largest customers combined —AAREFEF

20%
59%

36%
69%

The Swatch Group Limited constituted one of the five largest
suppliers through its subsidiary. Save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
interest of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the above major suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year under review, the Company renewed a
continuing connected transaction. On 31 March 2023,
the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Shengshi Watch and Clock Group Ltd. (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries, “Shengshi”’) entered into a
renewal agreement of the master services agreement and
a renewal agreement of supplementary agreement to the
master service agreement on 17 November, 2023. Shengshi
is an indirect and non-wholly owned company of Mr. Zhang
Yuping, the chairman and an executive Director of the
Company. Pursuant to the master services agreement and
the supplementary agreement, the Group provided the shop
design and decoration services to Shengshi Group and its
subsidiaries from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 with
a cap of RMB26.5 million while the actual amount incurred
was RMB26.2 million.
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The above continuing connected transaction is renewed in
consistent with the Group’s past business and operation
and the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into the master services agreement and the
supplementary agreement, which is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Such continuing connected transaction is subject to
announcement, annual review and annual reporting
requirements but exempts from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and has been annually
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction. The independent non-executive Directors
confirm that the above continuing connected transaction
is: (a) entered into in the ordinary course of business of
the Group; (b) entered into on normal commercial terms
or more favorable terms; and (c) entered into according
to the agreement of the relevant transaction with fair
and reasonable terms, which is in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to
carry out a review of the continuing connected transaction
of the Group in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, the auditor has confirmed that: (a) nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (b) for transaction involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction was not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (c) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transaction; and (d) with respect to the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transaction, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.

DONATIONS

During the year, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to RMBO (2022: nil).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA™).

ZHONGHUI ANDA will retire and is willing and eligible
to offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company. There
were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past
three years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important
events affecting the Group after the end of the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 May
2024 to Friday, 10 May 2024 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the general meeting. In order to establish
entitlements to attending and voting at the general meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 6 May 2024.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu ping) (5k%1F), aged 63,
is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
He is the founder of the Group and is in charge of the
Group’s strategic development and overall management. He
has over 30 years of management experience in watches
and other high-end consuming accessories manufacturing
and international trade industries. Mr. Zhang is also the
director of Best Growth International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the father of Cheung Wing
Lun Tony, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (& 7k %), aged 53, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the
Group’s operational supervision and customer service. Mr.
Huang has over 20 years of experience in watch accessories
services and management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (ZE#/8), aged 64, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
the Group’s business including accessories manufacturing.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and has pursued
further studies in business administration. He has nearly 30
years of experience in watch accessories manufacturing and
distribution.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Shi Zhongyang ($£ff%), aged 49, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the
PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’s
Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited
in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He is currently a

Degree in Law. Mr.

legal counsel of the legal department of The Swatch Group
Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (2 # &), aged 80, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the industrial
accounting faculty (I % &€ 5 X) of Shanghai College of
Finance and Economics (LB EFE). Mr. Cai holds a
Certificate for Professional Accountants (EFH{EEEIREE)
in the PRC. He was senior financial management for various
companies including Shanghai Hualian (Group) (E/&%EH
(£3) ). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005. He is currently an
independent director of Jiangsu Guotai International Group
Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002091).

Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (& % #), aged 64, is an
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 2005. He graduated from University of Edinburgh,
Scotland with a bachelor degree and a doctorate degree
in Electrical Engineering. Mr. Wong is currently a council
member of the seventh Hong Kong Legislative Council, a
professor in the Department of Systems Engineering and
Engineering Management in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a member of the 14th national committee
of CPPCC. He obtained the qualification as a Chartered
Engineer (CEng) in 1991, and is now a fellow of the
Institution of Engineering and Technology and a professional
member of the Association for Computing Machinery. Mr.
Wong has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 September 2023.

Mr. Liu Xueling (8] £
non-executive Director. He graduated from East China

%), aged 66, is an independent

Normal University in Shanghai with a doctorate degree
in history. At present, he is a senior lawyer in Shanghai
Tongyan Law Firm (/8T @HREMEHFT). He joined the
Group in 2007. He served as an independent director
of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600662) from 2014
to 2020.
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Ms. Qian Weiqging (4 %), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director. She graduated from Massey
University of New Zealand with a master degree in finance
management. Ms. Qian has been engaged in financial
investment for a long time and has rich experience in
commodity trading. She had hold positions in China
International Futures Co., Ltd. and COFCO Futures. Co.,
Ltd.. Ms. Qian has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 21 March
2023.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (5R%B), aged 34, is the Chief
Executive Officer and the president of high-end consuming
accessories business of the Group. He graduated from
Western Sydney University in Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Applied Finance and Management Accounting.
Mr Cheung joined the Group in 2012, and successively
served as assistant to president of high-end consuming
accessories business, assistant to executive director and
executive vice president of high-end consuming accessories
business of the Group. Mr. Cheung Wing Lun is the son of
Mr. Zhang Yuping, the chairman and executive Director of
the Company.

Ms. Tan Li (% RB), aged 59, is the vice president and
secretary to the Board and is in charge of the Board office
and human resources of the Group. Ms. Tan Li graduated
from Nanjing Normal University (F R Al# AX£2) with a Master
of Arts degree. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Tan Li taught at the branch colleges of
Peking University in China.

Mr. Ng Man Wai (2 X {&), aged 53, is the company
secretary and financial controller. Mr. Ng graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor degree in commerce.
He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

As at the end of 2023 and the date of this report, the
executive directors are Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman),
Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan; the
non-executive director is Mr. Shi Zhongyang, and the
independent non-executive directors are Mr. Cai Jianmin,
Mr. Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiqing.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

S IR

INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining high-standard corporate governance practice
to ensure transparency of the Group’s management, so
that the long-term development of the Group as well as our
shareholders, customers, employees can be safeguarded.
The Group has established a board of directors, an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and a nomination
committee that are diligent, accountable and professional.
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA has been appointed as the Group’s
external auditor.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Directors
are of the opinion that the Company complied with the
Corporate Governance Code during the year under review.

Composition of the Board

To maintain high-level independence and objectivity in
decision-making, and supervise the management of the
Group in a comprehensive and equitable manner, the Board
of the Group comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group), Huang Yonghua and
Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive Director (Mr. Shi
Zhongyang) and three independent non-executive Directors
(Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiging).

To ensure that the Board operates in an independent and
accountable manner, the three executive Directors have
been assigned with different responsibilities. Mr. Zhang
Yuping, the Chairman,
management and strategic development, while Mr. Lee Shu

Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall business operation

is in charge of the Group’s overall

of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is responsible for

coordination and supervision.

44 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

D%ﬁﬁ
i

RAEIBRM AR - O RFRBENQ

F BREEEEMNSEHE - J//(1%’§§HX

*EI&E@mﬁL%E°%%’$
—AER- - a8 BEEBZERW
%ﬁéﬂa FMEEgRIREE

SEITEESR EETRESET

& ) 5N IR A% A

y
o
S

/,

=]

|
%EHM‘“T\

B2
=

\

WDED%&D

EPE

\
A

&
& o
=]
E3E]

5

>
e
m
B
\4}

381 TR
7

MRAMECIE 2 X E)
C RARFREBEFERASEST

=2

S
.E”
o

H

v

H
B

P B R

HME
il
i)
—

EEE4AMX

SRBEFERRBY FEMUEEEETT
EEERAENER SENEEEH =2
EX(Rm¥iE (REXER) BKELRER
FRALE)  —RIFNTES (RHHELLE)
R=%2BIFNTER (BEREL  2BE
EREETZLT) EK

REREFQEFABUIELRREAN
TEZEDHNEETEANITIEHRE - TFEREF
TEBRSERBEERRBER  FTHEE
SRERERBEBNES  MEKELRLR
BEGRHEEE -

=R



The three independent non-executive Directors have
extensive experience in the areas of accounting, economics,
law and commodities trading, respectively, and can
adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders. Their
terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2023-25/9/2026;
Liu Xueling: 01/6/2022-31/5/2025;
Qian Weiging: 21/3/2023-11/3/2026.

Mr. Shi Zhongyang, a non-executive Director of the
Company, has professional expertise and extensive
experience in the areas of law and business management.
He will supervise the Company’s daily operation, and
provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in
a timely manner, which is beneficial to the standardized
operation of the Company and safeguarding the interests of
our shareholders. His term of office is 15/2/2024-14/2/2027;

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is accountable to the general
meeting and performs the following major duties: reporting
duties to the general meetings; executing the resolutions
of the general meetings; determining investment and profit
distribution proposals of the Company; formulating plans
as to the increase or decrease of the registered capital of
the Company; preparing plans in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appointing and dismissing the general manager of the
Company and determining his or her remuneration.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board discharged corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference,
or to be specific, the following corporate governance duties
during the year under review:

o reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ot SRR et

RARAB=ZRBIFATEEHRIEGE &
B EAREERATEmESEEHAGEER
B EROoRKAFRENEZ - REHS 5
P

R 26/9/2023-25/9/2026 :
2|25 : 01/6/2022-31/5/2025 :
BIETE 1 21/3/2023-11/3/2026 °

RATFERITESELMGEENER ITHE
BETHBEEEZEABREETLER  HAQA
HEELERER UEANENEAEE LR
B#E BARQANMASEERRERR 2
e o HEHA : 15/2/2024-14/2/2027 :

SUERREER  TEATEER
BWE TR TR SRR -
RERRNRETRRNBEAIELTR  FIERA
AIEMSR P EMERANT R RERA D
A0 BE BEELIR: BENEER
BBEETRERERMERASE -

EEERBETH  EFENEBFREARR
BEXKEMHEET T EEERARE - 8N
F EFEEREBFEAIERITT NILE

=DRBR ¢

mg il

. R EXERARRRER

FRABERA R AR R ZAEAER 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N [l SN
I EE IR
° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;
o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

° reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and employees; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which is helpful in the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is accountable to the
reporting
to the Board, executing the resolutions of the Board, and

Board and performs the following major duties:

completing all the tasks assigned by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has established effective risk management and
internal control systems to provide reasonable (though
not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of failing
to achieve business objectives. The Board is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness.
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In order to safeguard the interests of our shareholders,
the Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to provide top-down and bottom-up approaches
to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key risks in a
proactive and structured manner. The Group has established
departments dedicated to the supervision and control of
financial and operational risks, including an internal audit
department. Such departments formulate annual internal
audit plans and are responsible for performing daily and
special internal control procedures in aspects relating to
business operation, financial reporting and compliance
control and in accordance with the targets set by the
senior management, which includes conducting audits
and examination of all aspects and at all departments
once or twice a year, so as to enhance internal control
and ensure the sound development of the Company. Such
departments will report the audit and examination results to
the audit committee and the Board for them to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
of the Company, any significant failures or weaknesses in
internal control, and to take necessary actions promptly to
remedy any significant failures or weaknesses. If necessary,
such departments will follow up regularly on remedial
actions in response to significant internal control failures or
weaknesses.

The Company has established a disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure to
ensure that inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

The audit committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and completed the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness).
Based on the reviews made by independent auditors and
the Group’s self-assessment of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, the Group believes
that, these systems are effective and adequate. However,
the Group will continue to review the effectiveness of these
systems as well as further improve the internal administration
and control systems of the Company if required.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE EEHZ2EZHEER

MEETINGS
In 2023, a total of six Board meetings and an annual general R-_ZF—=FF  ARQFHBH AL EEE
meeting were held by the Company. The attendance of the &% ZBZEET —FAREBEEAD  KEZHH
Directors at the meetings was as follows: EEEMT
Frequency of Frequency of Frequency of
aftendance attendance at attendance at
atthe Board  Rate of the general  Rate of the commitiee Rate of
Name % meetings attendance  Remarks meeting attendance  Remarks meetings  aftendance  Remarks
e LEVN- zeges
LERE  BEE B HERE  HEE G HERH HEE
Zhang Yuping FHE 4 67%  Abstained 1 100% 2 100%
2 times
2R
Huang Yonghua akE 6 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of
the committee
iyelii FREENE
Lee ShuChung, Stan & 6 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of
the committee
0yelii FEREHR
Shi Zhongyang il 3 50% By proyy 0 0% N/A Non-member of
3 time* the committee
SRER Iyelii FZEENE
Cai Jianmin BER 6 100% 1 100% 4 100%
Wong Kam Fai, William*  &§5i&" 4 80% By proxy 1 100% 2 100%  Asresigned
1 time on 25 September
1RZIK 9RBARE
Liu Xueling H=E 6 100% 1 100% 4 100%
Qian Weiging* By 5 100% 1 100% N/A As appointed
on 25 September
)i 9A2R R
% Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William resigned on 25 September * =R IB 5L A R 2023F9 A25H BHE ¢ SIS

2023; Ms. Qian Weiging was appointed on 21 March 2023

Z+MR2023F3 21 HER T

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate and =Z=E&KESHEBEGEE LRTCER » UE
sufficient information in due course for their understanding ®ETHMAEE SHERE  EHAHEEE
of the latest developments of the Group, which is helpful in  THREE -

the discharge of their duties.

48 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
requirements under the Code A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors of the
Company attended relevant training in accordance with the
Listing Rules and provided the relevant training records to
the Company. According to the records, details of Directors’
attendance at the training sessions during the year under
review are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations
EER  EBEREH

Seminar/training
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Accounting/financial/management
and other professional expertise
Bt MK EERAEMEERE

Seminar/training

Name "E Material reading attending Material reading attending
SEER SEER S

EREE 3 ERIBE 3

Zhang Yuping of B0 < v v/ 4 2
Huang Yonghua HKEE v v v v
Lee Shu Chung Stan & s 4 v/ v v
Shi Zhongyang 52 {HE5 v 7 4 v/
Cai Jianmin £ER v v v v
Wong Kam Fai, William &7 # v v v v/
Liu Xueling 22T v v 4 7
Qian Weiging BIET v v v v
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received confirmation from all the
independent Directors regarding their independence made
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that all the incumbent independent Directors have
met the requirements of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and remained independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Yuping serves as the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony serves as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The Chairman’s responsibility is to
oversee the functioning of the Board and the strategies
and policies of the Group and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Group’s business. Mr.
Cheung Wing Lun Tony is the son of Mr. Zhang Yuping.

Save as disclosed above, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between members of the Board.

MEETING BETWEEN CHAIRMAN AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting was held
between Chairman and independent non-executive directors
of the Company without the presence of other directors,
mainly to discuss the impact of the year’s political and
economic situation on the Company’s operations and the
Company’s future direction and other related matters.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code for securities transactions by its Directors.
After making specific enquiries with all the Directors serving
during the year under review, the Company has confirmed
that during the year under review, all of them had complied
with the standard as required by the above code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 90 to 96 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee payable to the auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 will be approximately
RMB1,811,000 (2022: approximately RMB1,612,000). During
the year under review, in addition to the auditing services,
the Company’s auditors also provided the Group with
services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
total non-auditing service fees were RMB289,000 (2022:
RMB275,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai,
William (as retired on 25 September 2023), Liu Xueling
and Qian Weiging, who are responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk management and control
matters, which included a review on the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
interim report for 2023. According to the terms of reference
of the audit committee adopted and implemented by the
Company, the audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting matters and duties of risk
management and control.
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During the year, the audit committee of the Company held
meetings on 21 March and 22 August 2023 to review the
annual report and interim financial reports of the Group
respectively. All members of the committee, namely Messrs.
Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,

attended the meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of
the Group’s financial report, risk management and control

for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2023 financial report of the Company is objective in
all material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and
the operating results and cash flow in 2023. During the
reporting period, given the uncertainties, unstable factors
and the evolving situation stemming resulting from the
sophisticated and changeable economic environment,
the Company's business continued to operate steadily.
The financial indicators were improved while maintaining
stability. The Company's overall operation was positive.
During the reporting period, the standard and system of
risk control of the Company played a synergistic role in
the curse of activities and made satisfactory contributions.
Confronted with severe environment, the Company is still
required to examine the situation and actively respond to it
to ensure the stable operation of the Company and achieve
a better performance.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the remuneration committee comprises three
Directors including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai
Jianmin, being independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Zhang Yuping, Chairman and executive Director of the
Group. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
the Directors and senior management of the Group, and to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes as
set out in Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to the remuneration structure
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. All
members of the committee, namely Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai
Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the nomination committee comprises three
Directors, including Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), executive
Director and Chairman of the Group, and Messrs. Cai
Jianmin and Liu Xueling, being independent non-executive
Directors. The Company has adopted and implemented
the terms of reference of the nomination committee. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopts the nomination and selection
policies for the Board members, including the criteria and
procedures for appointment, by-election and re-election of
Directors.

Selection and Recommendation Criteria

In determining the suitability of the candidates for Directors,
the factors the nomination committee and the Board should
consider shall include integrity, professional ability, business
experience, independence and potential contribution to
the Company and the Board and diversity in terms of age,
culture, race, and gender, under the laws and regulations
of Cayman lIslands, Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. These criteria shall mainly include:
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o candidates shall be persons of integrity, honesty,
good reputation and professional status;

° candidates should be able to meet the needs of the
current Board structure, size, diversity and talent mix;

o candidates’ business experience and professional
knowledge and ability in the operation of the Board;

o candidates can spare sufficient time to ensure the
proper performance of their duties as a Director;

o candidates for independent non-executive Directors
must meet the independence requirements of the
Listing Rules, possess independent character and
judgment, and be able to effectively handle the
Company’s affairs in a manner that is in line with and
represents the best interests of all shareholders of the
Company.

These criteria are not to be exhaustive or decisive. The
nomination committee and the Board will take into careful
consideration any other factors that are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders when selecting
candidates for Directors.
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Nomination Procedure

When the Board determines that it is necessary to appoint
additional or replacement Directors, the nomination
committee shall adopt such methods and channels as it
deems appropriate to find suitable candidates for Directors,
including recommendations from the Directors, shareholders,
management and external headhunters. After working out
the list of potential candidates, the nomination committee
shall draw up a shortlist of candidates for discussion by
the Board based on the selection criteria and other factors
it deems appropriate. The nomination committee and the
Board will ensure that the composition of Directors complies
with laws and regulations of Cayman lIslands, Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election, the Board may recommend such retiring Director
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. A circular
containing the requisite information on such retiring Director
shall be sent to the shareholders before the general meeting
under the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee and the Board shall review the
above nomination policy from time to time to ensure that the
Company remains compliant with the relevant regulatory
requirements and maintains a good corporate governance
standard.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to retirement by rotation and
re-election of Directors of the Company and the appointment
of Ms. Qian Weiging as an independent non-executive
director of the Company. All members of the nomination
committee (namely Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai Jianmin, and
Liu Xueling) attended the meeting.
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SUMMARY OF THE BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes
that board diversity can be achieved by taking into account
various factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, term of services and other
talents. All the appointments have been made based on
the Company’s business models and specific needs from
time to time, and candidates have been assessed with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board on objective
business conditions. The nomination committee will be
mainly responsible for identifying suitable and competent
candidates for Board members and assessing such
candidates in light of objective conditions. As a part of the
annual performance review for the efficiency of the Board,
considerations of the nomination committee will be balanced
between skills and experience as required for accomplishing
the business targets of the Company and diversity factors.
To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee will
discuss and develop measurable objectives from time
to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the nomination committee shall be based on
a range of diverse perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
term of services. However, the final decision will depend
on the strengths of the candidates and their prospective
contributions to the Board. The Board may improve one
or more diversified perspectives from time to time, and
measure the progress on such basis. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time, including
conducting assessments on the effectiveness of the policy.
The nomination committee will also discuss any amendment
that may be necessary, and submit amendment proposals to
the Board for approval.
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During the year under review, Ms. Qian Weiging was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
thereby increasing the diversity of the Board.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 76 of this annual
report for the gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at
31 December 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2004. His biographical details are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”.
2023, Mr.
not less than 15 hours in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

For the financial year ended 31 December
Ng attended relevant professional training for

Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2023
falls within the following bands:

REEFER BEBELXTERE/REULIF
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and Make Recommendations at
General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any shareholder holding at the date of filing the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at a general meeting
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business or resolutions
specified in such requisition and for the purpose of adding
resolutions to the agenda of the meeting; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the filing of such
requisition. If the Board fails to convene such meeting within
twenty-one (21) days of such filing, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the
Company.

The letter demanding the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the
principal office of the Company indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of
the Company for any enquiries indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

On 21 March 20283, the Board proposed to amend the
existing amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company (the “Memorandum and
Articles”) to, inter alia, (i) allow a general meeting to be held
as an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general
meeting) or a hybrid meeting; (i) bring the Memorandum
and Articles in line with the amendments made to Appendix
A1 to the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 January
2022 and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands;
and (iii) make certain housekeeping amendments to the
Memorandum and Articles (collectively, the “Proposed
Amendments”).

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association incorporating the Proposed Amendments has
become effective upon approval of the shareholders of
the Company by way of a special resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review,

there was no other significant change in the articles of
association of the Company.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes in the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders and the investors
in attaining high-level transparency in the Group and
enhancing understanding of the Group’s development
strategy and direction by investors. Since its listing, the
Group has maintained close communications with the
shareholders, media, analysts and fund managers through
various communication channels such as one-on-one
meetings, roadshows, press conferences, press releases,
telephone communications and emails, in an attempt to
answer the enquiries of the investors in a timely manner and
provide accurate and timely information to the investors,
so as to enhance their understanding of the development
strategy and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, the Company mainly
communicated with analysts, investors and potential
investors in different regions by means of telephone and
online meetings. It enabled the investors in different
countries and regions to have a timely and in-depth
understanding of the Group, whilst the senior management
capturing the concerns of the investors in a timely manner,
so as to continuously improve the efforts of the Company in
investors relations. Accordingly, the Company considered its
shareholders’ communication policy is effective.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with its domestic and overseas investors and
constantly improve their understanding of and confidence in
the Group.
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GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli's motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of environmental protection,
environment quality management, use of resources, and
talent development, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

Hengdeli has always regarded social responsibility as
an essential part of corporate governance, and attached
great importance to the benefits and relationships that its
corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders,
business partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully
aware that strengthening social responsibility is not only
crucial for Hengdeli’s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of Hengdeli’s participation in
civil society.

Over the years, the Group has been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards becoming a green enterprise. We have been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing quality
and safe products to customers, which has earned us social
credibility and made us a reliable company. We respect and
value talents, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development objective for both employees
and the enterprise. The care of our employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to create
a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial corporate
culture for employees, in which we share with them the
success brought by the company’'s growth and thus
integrate individual, corporate and social values. We have
also been getting more involved in public welfare activities,
actively participating in a range of social undertakings
such as education and social welfare activities, serving
the community with sincerity and bringing new hope to
those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish itself
as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2023, the global political environment remained unstable,
and China’'s economy experienced an upward recovery
the Group
continued to operate its business in a positive and prudent
In 2023,
the Group enhanced its social corporate responsibility

curve amidst continuous pressures. However,

manner with a view to achieving healthy growth.

activities at different levels as usual, and further integrated
the concept of social corporate responsibility into its daily
operations. We continued to provide quality and safe
products and services to our customers, while also ensured
the mutual benefits and common development of customers,
employees and the society.

Governance structure

The Group’s Board is responsible for leading the overall
development and operation of the Group, which includes
monitoring the strategies and performance of environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) of the Company. Good ESG
performance is an essential element for long-term corporate
success and long-term operations. At the level of business
operation, the Group has established an ESG Committee
responsible for formulating the Group’s ESG development
strategies, assessing and monitoring environmental, social
and corporate governance related risks, overseeing and
reviewing the work progress of the ESG working groups, and
reporting regularly to the Board to ensure that the Board has
maintained high standards of management and compliance
with regulatory requirements. This report has also been
approved by the Board in March 2024 and set out in the

Company’s annual report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to close liaison and ongoing
interaction with key stakeholders including shareholders,

investors, customers,

the community to gather feedback through various
communication channels to identify and assess the

importance of ESG issues. The communication channels with

key stakeholders include, but are not limited to the following:

Stakeholders
Fz=tEEEE

Communication Channels
BEEE

BHESHE
AEERNRBFEFRNEBERE &E&
% TP BB HEARMENERHEBE
employees, suppliers and &% BRASBEAREKEREER
HEmBARMTHESCGE BEEMEEE - HE
ERHENERRETIEREATRNET ¢

Concerns and Expectations

BERHE

Shareholders and Investors

BREEE

Customers

Employees

7l
]

General meeting

Regular reports and
announcements

Investor relations activities

BERAE
ERRERAE

REEBRED

Website disclosure and
corporate brochure
Daily communications
In-person visit

At % 7R e E A1

HE &l

EEFES

Trainings and team-building
activities, seminars
Employees care activities
Telephone, email and meeting
Internal communications
In-person communication
BN EREE - e
STEEES

B BEREE

AER A

TE0 1 T 38
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Return of investment
Information disclosure and
corporate transparency

Rights and interests protection
of shareholders and investors
& B ¥
EEBBEREFEBEAE

f&R kI & E IR E

Quality and safety of products
Integrity in operation
Corporate transparency

EmEGERTE
HIERE

TEERE

Benefits protection of employees
Working conditions
Career development
opportunities
Salaries and benefits
Health and safety
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Stakeholders
F=iEEE

Communication Channels
BEEE

BE - g LEIRRE

Concerns and Expectations
ERHAE

Suppliers/Business Partners

"Em,AERH

Supervisory Authorities

Business meeting, email and
visit

Bidding process

Regular reviews and
assessments

¥Bg% BERFED
%&*ﬂ?/ﬂb#ﬂi

Mt Rt S E

Annual report

Information disclosure
Participate in trainings and
seminars

Ongoing dialogues by email and
telephone communication, etc.

Stable business relationships
Resource sharing
Growth together

IR A ERRR
ﬁ/ﬁ/\?

Corporate governance and risk
management
Good cooperation

EEHE . FERE . rRERERAREE
. EEHE . RiFaE
. %EPW&HJA
. BH  EEBASHEUE
Local Communities ° Media consultancy ° Environmental protection
° Annual report ° Contribute to society
° Website disclosure
° Participate in charity and social
activities
Zan . BHREA . RGRE
. FERSE . Olfgit &

. BUBRE
. EERHEEDEA

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In accordance with the “Guidelines of Environmental,
Social and Governance” set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange, the Group has, based on communication
with key stakeholders and its actual situation, assessed
environmental, social and governance issues that are
relevant with and material to its business from two
perspectives, namely the materiality of issue to stakeholders
and the materiality of issue to environment and society, so
as to clarify the overall materiality of each sustainability
issue and hence a prioritised list is made as the basis for
the Group’s ESG focus and disclosure.

BEEMFE

SEKEMIMES EHHRRMEC2 R
HeRkERERMES ] SHHERRE - HER
gm%% EHRETERNENEERERDN
ERER HEEHMNaAE T ERE NG
%ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ@%i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ?'“J
%EEE¥%W@HEEW%% HakER
EEETHE  SHIBRAFEERBENE
%EEHK?’%%%&@%MF'W%%E
ESGRIE R IKBEHI KR -

FRFERABRAR B EARAER 65



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREE - g LEIRRE

The ESG materiality matrix of the Group during the year [EIEEERN @ NEEESGEAZEBMEMIT -
under review was as follow:

ubiH
it

siapjoysyels ay1 0} soueliodw|
TR B 5 R o K 2

Low Importance to the Company High
& HAQNRNEERM =
Importance Issues
EEMHF o
Highly material issues mEZMERE 1 Products Quality and Safe Production
EmEBHEAELD
2 Operational Compliance
BEARER
3 Pollutant Emission Control
VEE SUke 9 el
4 Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction
EBEPEFE
5 Sustainable Profitability
AR E R
Moderately material issues FEEMEE 6 Fair Employment
RTERE
7 Employee Care
ETME
8 Avoid child and Forced Labour
B E T RS T
9 Anti-corruption
R&S
10 Training and Development
EIIEER
ih Technological Innovation
Esh=lE
12 Supply Chain Management
HIEEER
13 Intellectual Property Rights Protection
FHE R
Less material issues EEZMHER 14 Community Development
=R
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We have identified potential issues of importance to the
Group through materiality assessment, and continued to
focus on material issues for monitoring and reporting by
disclosing relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
and setting targets and plans, establishing appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems.

A summary of the Group’s 2023 social corporate
responsibility performance relative to various quantitative
KPls, with comparison to previous years, are disclosed in
the section headed “Scope of Reporting”. Information of the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
references, and sources of key conversion factors used
on these KPls are stated wherever appropriate. As far
as reasonably practicable, consistent methodologies are
adopted when calculating these KPIs or any changes that
affect a meaningful comparison would be stated.

Scope of Reporting

The report covers the operations of the Group and each of
its high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries. There
are no significant changes in the scope of reporting as
compared with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” under the 2022 Annual Report of the Group dated 3
April 2023.

ENVIRONMENT

For many years, Hengdeli has taken environmental
protection as one of its top corporate governance priorities.
The Group implements a series of mechanisms and
measures relating to environmental management and energy
conservation in its daily operations aimed at protecting
the environment and conserving energy, with a view to
promoting harmonious balance and sustainable development
in terms of economic, social and ecological benefits.

BE - g LEIRRE

BB BEZENMG BEEEEENEER
B WEBRERBEERERER AR
et 2 BERBERNEERRRAMBE
BEEG FEMIEZRENREDER -

SE2023FHERBEELERERIEFOLE
HEREERAEBEFOHRLE  HEHME
N [HREHE] —& - ARNELBEREBIER
BRE - 750K - BRRHEFENZE - UK
TEBRERZONIR  HAEEEHINHA - £E
BRTNERAT  BREMIERHN-BUTA
AENEEAREEELBRARNNE 1
ST RIEER -

(X EE
AFEREEBNENBS S mBEERELE
ELFNER  EREELE2023F4H3H T
B EE2022FHAM [FRE - 2 REA
= | FrEE L EE NEH o

B
ZER THEN-—EBEBREREERLEER
WEHZ - ERELETRN—RIIREE
BRERE IR S AE i - BT RIRR
EMERDL  BMOARILBNE  H8¥m
A RE R R M 38 TR A I B HR o

FRAEERARAT R EA4ER 67



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREE - g LEIRRE

Emissions

Most of the Group’s emissions are produced from the
industrial production processes of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries located in Mainland China. The
branches and subsidiaries of the Group are all in strict
compliance with national and local regulations regarding
emissions of pollutant gas, sewage and greenhouse gas
and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
produced in the production process, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law, the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Water Pollution Prevention Law, the Air Pollution
Prevention Law, the Environmental Protection Tax Law, the
Administrative Measures for Pollutant Discharge Licensing
(for Trial Implementation) and the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of Mainland China, and has formulated
internal management systems such as the “Pollutant
Emission Management System” and the “Environmental
Monitoring Management Measures”. The Group is
committed to achieving sustainable development goals in a
responsible manner with aims to effectively reduce various
emissions in the course of growing production scale and
increase in sales. To this end, the Group launched the
internal self-development and testing of the “water-based
paint replacing oil-based paint” solution in respect of
industrial coatings with the aim of replacing oil-based
paint currently in use gradually by water-based paint so
as to effectively reduce the emission of formaldehyde in
industrial coatings. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group filtered, purified and
recycled the industrial waste water to reduce the overall
sewage discharge. Moreover, with absorbent carbon
adsorption and the installation of central vacuum system,
the Group also effectively reduced the dust contamination
in the production rooms. The Group is inspected regularly
by the Environmental Protection Bureau. During the year,
the monitored results of all polluting emissions (including
sewage and gas) for each of the relevant factories passed
the annual inspection and met national standards, with
no incident of non-compliance. In the future, the Group
will continually revise and improve various environmental
protection rules and regulations, thoroughly implement
pollutant emission monitoring and upgrade production
process, so as to achieve effective emission reductions,
and strive to reduce single-digit percentage of emissions of
equivalent output value within the next three years.
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In 2023, the emission of pollutant gas
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of the Group was as

BE - g LEIRRE

T_=F SEERFEREENT

follows:

2022 2023
Type of emissions HmyiEsE 20224 20234
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (g) RE(EW(NOX) (52) 482,891 314,293
Sulfur oxides (SOx) (g) HEEY(SOx) (52) 1,416 1,198

Note: The calculation of emissions and energy consumption
was based on Reporting Guide of Environmental Key
Performance Indicators of the Stock Exchange (the same

below).

In 2023,

the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse

gas emissions were the industrial production, electricity

consumption, office paper use, and company vehicles. The

total emissions were as follows:

Volume (tonnes CO2-eq)

BRERERERNGTESE THIMRE
MREBIERERESISEH (TR) -

—E=F KENA
ITELXE 8FE #A
PR -

EREHBREERRE
Fﬁriﬁ 3 /\miﬁﬁ { /Ml»

Density (tonnes CO2-eq/HKD
one million revenue)

BE (ZEREEM,/

Type of emissions HEiEs E (ZEtREEM) 5-EBBRTURE)
2022 2023 2022 2023
20224 20234F 20224 20234
Direct greenhouse gas emissions ~ HIEREREHHNE 334 266 0.27 0.19
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions  f&#%8 = RASHHE 6,720 6,916 583 4.87
The total emissions of hazardous and non-hazardous waste HBAEEZEYMEEREZY -T - =F@HH0M
in 2023 were as follows: TS &
Density
Volume (tonnes) (waste generated per sales unit)
Type of emissions HEriEs 2 (W) (GHEBNMELENEEY)
2022 2023 2022 2023
20224 20234 20224 2023
Hazardous industrial waste TEEZREEY 245 280 0.19 0.20
Non-hazardous industrial waste THEEREEY) 222 259 0.18 0.18
FRFIEERARAT R AR 69
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To facilitate the effective implementation of 1SO14001
environmental management system, the Group entered
into contracts with relevant professional industrial waste
treatment companies, and hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated in the production process were
recycled by nationally recognised professional companies.
Furthermore, in order to achieve the goal of effectively
reducing waste emissions while expanding production
scale, the Group collaborated with a well-known university
in the UK since 2017 on a project to explore the feasibility
of transforming the existing sawdust waste from wood into
usable materials by mixing these waste with other materials.
After research and development and internal testing, we
have made a partial success in the trial, demonstrating that
the blended material achieved satisfactory performance
in effectively reducing the Group’s industrial waste
emissions. In recent years, the Group also carried out a new
experiment with the university to explore the feasibility of
using a new kind of steel that advances the production level
of automation. The success of the experiment is expected
to improve production efficiency, reduce consumption
and effectively reduce waste emissions. Since the density
of waste per unit of output value in the year under review
increased year-on-year mainly due to the increase in
industrial waste emissions from Dongguan Born Talent,
reasonable measures will be taken in due course to reduce
industrial waste emissions in the future.

Use of Resources

The Group conducts operation and production in a
responsible manner and aims to save energy and reduce
consumption while developing business. Specifically, the
Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies
to optimise its working environment, which emphasises
green operations and green initiatives in the workplace.
The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to
the interior design of its office. Our open space designs
maximise the use of outdoor natural light and shared light.
Original furniture is retained, remodelled or reinstated as
much as possible during renovation to make rational use
of existing resources and reduce waste; and the traditional
high-energy-consuming incandescent light bulbs have been
gradually replaced with energy-saving LED light bulbs that
enjoy higher efficiency and longer life cycle.
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The Group thoroughly implements a number of measures
designed to reduce emissions and cut down its consumption
of energy and natural resources, for example, printing
office paper on both sides and reusing waste paper, used
envelopes and kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling
bins are placed in office to regularly recycle used paper
and old newspapers and magazines, and employees are
encouraged to read and send files electronically to reduce
printing. The Group actively embraces the concept of a
“paperless” office and puts it into practice, in which most
office documents are digitalised to save space and reduce
paper use. For documents after classification and archiving,
it is more efficient to search and use, while human errors
in the process can be avoided effectively. This not only
protects the environment, but also reduces the administrative
burden and the daily operating costs. The Group uses an
online office automation system to improve its administrative
functions, such as the filing and approval processes for
applications for business trips and expenses reimbursement.
It also uses an online platform to publish the Group’s
notices, policies and regulations to share information, which
not only improves work efficiency but also significantly
conserves energy. Meanwhile, the upgrade and integration
of internal ERP system and the use of innovative cloud
technology facilitates have enabled the sharing of data and
seamless collaboration among different departments within
the Group and the enhancement of corporate resources,
which maintains the business continuity of the Group and
improves its resource efficiency and competitiveness.

In addition, the Group encourages and implements remote
conference system, while also advises employees to use
public transport for business trips, and constantly reviews
and makes adjustments on the goods delivery process, so
as to reduce energy consumption and carbon emission.
A Group-wide campaign that promotes turning off lights
when leaving has been launched to integrate environmental
awareness into the everyday work life of employees.
Moreover, smart finger print attendance machines have
gradually replaced traditional paper attendance cards.
Our Hong Kong office regularly sends the coffee capsules
used in the pantry to brand suppliers for recycling, and
encourages employees to recycle and reuse red packets.
The Group has also formulated internal operational
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guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding water
and electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners. In particular, the
Group adheres to the energy-saving policy throughout every
production process during manufacturing, continuously
upgrades high-efficiency and energy-saving equipment
to phase out energy-intensive production equipment
gradually. Besides, the Group improves production process,
production environment and service efficiency of equipment
on an on-going basis to reduce energy consumption during
the process.

The water consumption of the Group is mainly attributable
to the industrial production of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries, and the water is sourced from
the water supply system of local government. However,
the water consumption during the production process is
not significant. The Group is committed to environmental
protection and sustainable development although it has
not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. At present, the Group has recycled water by using
water curtain booth which effectively saves water resources
for industrial use. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group has filtered, purified
and recycled the industrial wastewater to effectively reduce
the overall sewage discharge. The Group strives to reduce
water consumption per unit of output by 3-5% within three
years.

An overview of resource consumption:

AFRE - KRETHIE T AEIRERES - HA
K- AEARZERAMBARERREEEFHAR
EoHBHRERBTIRLAET  HMABRKLELH
RETHEFRAEENEERES - TEHTRSH
EigERE BT HAABRELERE T
EELTE BEEAERR  RARBEANR
X AR ETERETMEERERE -

SERKIZXREREHHEERELEELEN
TEAE - KFEKRERE BT KRR
BAEBREHKNEREL TEKN - AEBEH
RRBE IS ERKR BRI ERFERE - B4
AUARFRERAIFERRACE - BAIKE
ERAEMRKEREAKBREBN  BHEHET
TER/KERBERE  XWEBRIMTRAAmRNE
EBE NN - & ITEEEREKERBRBF
X ETRRMNA - BROBE T BT KN
B NREZFREMELFEKERD3-5% °

BRBEFREBAME

Total volume Density
2022 2023 2022 2023
Item o 20224 20234 20224 20234
Electricity consumption (kWh)  # & (FRA) 11,030,478 11,347,837 8,757.13 7,983.28
Office paper used (kg) MARME (F52) 347 392 0.28 0.28
Venhicle fuel (L) BRI s (RF) 93,978 77,926 74.61 54.28
LPG (kg) R (F=) 26,392 18,179 20.95 12.79
Water consumption (m?) FEK (LK) 105,121 117,504 83.46 82.66
Packaging materials for
finished goods (tonnes) RURK on B AR (IE) 349 373 0.28 0.26

72 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment and Natural Resources

Most of the Group’s emissions and use of resources are
produced from the industrial production processes of
high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries located
in Mainland China. The Group has been committed
to environment protection, energy conservation and
consumption reduction. In order to raise awareness of the
environmental impact from us and our activities at all levels
of the Group, we are constantly working to reduce carbon
footprint by various policies, measures and actions (for
details, please refer to the sections headed “Emissions” and

“Use of Resources” as set out above).

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

Taking Action on Climate Change

Prolonged climate change may induce rising sea levels,
reduced water sources and loss of biodiversity. The extreme
events arising from climate change such as storms, floods,
fires and epidemics may have a potential impact on the
operation of the Group. In the event of such risks occurring,
production facilities may be damaged and supply chain
would be disrupted, which will pose a risk to the Group’s
assets, damage our operation capacity and reputation and
cause direct business losses.
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Although such risks are hard to predict, the Group is
committed to continuously monitoring and reducing its
direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions in order
to reduce the potential impact of climate change on the
Group. Therefore, the Group has established Carbon
Inventory Accounting Procedures based on international
standards such as the GHG Protocol and local guidelines.
The Group also acknowledges the urgency of addressing
climate change and is taking every possible step to manage
and reduce climate risks. Furthermore, we closely monitor
international efforts towards decarbonisation, including
carbon neutrality target of Hong Kong and Mainland China,
to guide our low-carbon roadmap. The Group aims for
sustainable development by constantly monitoring the
environmental impact of its operations and implementing
appropriate measures to minimise harm to the environment,
while at the same time integrating the concepts of
conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the

corporate culture.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets of corporate operation and development.
Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the Group strictly
complies with all local labour standards and relevant
employment regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group has actively
implemented its Personnel Management System and
in a bid to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and welcoming
protect employees’ rights to rest
days, statutory holidays, paid annual leaves and maternity

adopted a standardised recruitment system,

working environment,

leaves according to laws, and build a fair, just and

transparent working platform, therefore to create a promising
development prospect for employees.
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Employment

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic
rights of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees
and adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in
employment, recruiting and cultivating talents regardless of
race, religion, color, nationality, gender or age. The Group
also reviews its mechanism and structure in different aspects
from time to time in order to adapt to the development of the
enterprise and, at the same time, to benefit the employees’
development. The Group held professional seminars and job
fairs from time to time in order to recruit outstanding talents
to join the Company.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming
talents so as to ensure transparency and to maintain fairness
and equality.

The Group implements scientific remuneration management
and various other incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for
different positions to guarantee their market competitiveness.
To attract talents, the Group also offers various welfare
incentives to its employees, including pension plans, MPF
plans, medical insurance schemes, and housing and meal
allowances.

Further, the Group grants awarded shares and share options
to the senior management staff (including but not limited to
directors, executives and manager-level employees) and
relevant persons of the Company in recognition of their
contributions to the Group, and as an incentive encouraging
initiative and good performance in the workplace.
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As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,467
employees (2022: 1,565) in Mainland China, Hong Kong and

other places shown as follows:

BE T -_=F+-_A=+—HB £@RAFTH
i - B SEMERL1,467RET (T =

—4F :1,565%)  EASMMOT ¢

No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Mainland China B A 3t 1,525 1,428
Hong Kong BB 38 37
Taiwan/Malaysia A&/ BREE 2 2
Total FEE 1,565 1,467
No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Aged 18-25 18-255% 93 80
Aged 26-55 26-555% 1,409 1,325
Aged 56 or above 565% A 63 62
Total FEE 1,565 1,467
No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Male E 867 816
Female T 698 651
Total HEt 1,565 1,467
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No. of staff
ETHE
2022 2023
20224 2023%F
Full-time 2% 1,553 1,466
Part-time E 3 12 1
Total HEt 1,565 1,467
Employee turnover rate
ETRAZE
2022 2023
20224 2023
Mainland China AR [ (A D 30.3 35.2
Hong Kong and Macau oyl 15.8 10.8
Taiwan/Malaysia = -0 Tk 0 0
Employee turnover rate
BIRAE
2022 2023
20224 20235
Aged 18-25 18-255% 89.2 75.0
Aged 26-55 26-555% &5.5 32.8
Aged 56 or above 5657 A 20.6 24.2
Employee turnover rate
ETRAR
2022 2023
20224 2023%F
Male = 341 31.3
Female L8 42.7 38.7
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The Group places emphasis on employees’ sense of
belonging to the Company, and is committed to providing
them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.
In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the employees as well as
facilitating the enterprise’s sound development, so as to
care for employees and strengthen their sense of belonging
and their solidarity with the Group.

The Group’s labour unions at different levels have the
tradition of organizing activities for employees, such as
holding birthday parties for employees and holiday dinner
parties, and arranging employees’ participation in social
sports events. These activities enhanced employees’
physical and psychological well-being and strengthened
their sense of belonging and overall team spirit.
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Team building activity of the Group’s
subsidiary, Dongguan Born Talent
EETEREES RN LEKEREE

20th anniversary celebration of the Group’s Safety production training and fire drill in the
subsidiary, Suzhou Henge Group’s subsidiary, Guangzhou Artdeco
SETEHIMNTTE A R20BFENE D SETEEMNFHRARI L2 EEFIIEY ER
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Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains high manufacturing safety standards.
To provide its employees with a safe and comfortable
working environment, the Group ensures it is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and the
relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Malaysia, such as the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Fire Prevention Law of
the People’s Republic of China. It also implements internal
guidelines and policies on occupational health and safety
for different working conditions and positions to ensure the
health and safety of its employees. The Group purchases
labour insurance for its employees, equips each workplace
with first aid kit with basic first aid supplies, arranges
employees for regular participation in courses on first-aid
skills, provides employees with training courses and drills on
manufacturing safety, fire and disaster prevention awareness
at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries, equips
employees in the position exposing to occupational hazards
with protective gears in line with national and industry
standards, and checks whether they wear the gears on an
irregular basis. The Group arranges regular occupational
disease checkups and maintains health surveillance archives
for its employees. The employee handbook also provides
clear and comprehensive guidelines on handling hurricane
and rainstorm warnings, as well as accidents and work
injuries. The Group’s industrial group also conducts regular
assessments of occupational hazards in the workplace, and,
based on the assessment reports by third parties, improves
the environment of workplace through the transformation
of system engineering facilities. Guangzhou Artdeco
even installed dust collection alarm system to provide a
safer working environment for employees. All production
subsidiaries established dual prevention mechanism of risk
control by ranking and elimination and handling of hidden
dangers. The Group’s safety production situation continues
to improve. During the year under review, the Group had a
very low rate of work-related injuries, while the lost days due
to work-related injuries were 161.5 days (2022: 417.5 days),
and there were no cases of work-related deaths (the last
three years: nil).
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Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
The Group encourages employees at all levels to engage
in advanced studies or participate in training to achieve
their personal growth and professional development. While
developing its business and safeguarding the basic rights
of its employees, the Group also provides a platform for
employees to develop their careers, which includes offering
a comprehensive learning and training system that helps
them grow quickly and strengthens their sense of belonging.
The Group formulates suitable training courses according
to the needs of its different departments and businesses.
It also implements an internal recruitment system, in which
employees can choose their career path based on their
interests and strengths.

Every year, the Group offers comprehensive induction
training covering an overview of the Group’s business,
information about business partners, product knowledge,
corporate culture and core values and business-related
policies and regulations to new recruits as well as
pre-service safety training for new recruits of factories to
help them integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group also provides its directors and senior
management with regular trainings, so as to maintain
continuing professional development and enhance their
knowledge and skills. The training includes regular updates
on rules for listed companies, and information about
relevant laws and regulations, corporate governance,
inside information, anti-corruption and bribery, internet
risk and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.
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During the year under review, the average training hours per
person provided by the Group were as follows:

Training by type (average training hours per person and

CEFEER  SEFHEIFHENT

REBFERIE Y (FAEIRHLEZEINE

percentage of employees who received training) TEDL)
2022 2023
20224 2023
Middle to senior management HEEEEAE  Average hours per person AR & 7.8 19.0
Percentage EE4 68% 65%
Frontline staff —#RET Average hours per person NS 8.6 12.1
Percentage Btk 100% 100%
Other employees Hin s Average hours per person A& 10.2 19.4
Percentage Aot 96% 96%

Training by gender (average training hours per person and

percentage of employees who received training) )

RIERE S (PRI REREINETH

2022 2023
20224 20234
Male 3 Average hours per person NZ[EE 10.1 13.1
Percentage EEa 99% 100%
Female X Average hours per person ABRE 7.4 15.5
Percentage Bt 96% 96%

Labour Standards 2T
The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong £BREESMHMERBEANM - BR  5&EKEKE

Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. The Group is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and all
relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations.
All of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.
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The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system
and internal training standards on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment
process and internal management system and verify the
identities of job applicants to ensure that they are of legal
age, so as to deter child labour and forced labour.

Operation Practices

The Group,
manufacturers and suppliers to deliver quality and safe
products to customers, and is dedicated to maintaining a

as always, cooperates closely with

high level of industrial production transparency and product
responsibility. Throughout its operations, the Group ensures
that it maintains and carries forward a good social reputation
by complying with all national and regional anti-corruption
and anti-bribery policies.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain
management system that optimises links from suppliers,
product production to after-sales, so as to optimise the
allocation of social resources. Meanwhile, the Group realizes
an effective link between production and sales as well
as a reasonable flow of logistics,
through an efficient information network, and delivers quality
products and considerate services to consumers in a timely

information and capital

manner at reasonable prices.
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The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing have each formulated
corresponding code and management measures for
raw material suppliers, such as Supplier Development
and Management Procedures, Guidelines for Supplier
Evaluation Work and Environmental Substance Management
Standards, to set up entry standards for qualified suppliers.
The Group also adjusts the assessment criteria based
on the continuous development and changes of market
environment and requirements, and thoroughly screens and
evaluates suppliers to ensure that the materials purchased
feature good quality, reasonable price and timely service.
Each factory of the Group has a detailed supplier survey,
assessment sheet, as well as a standardised supplier
management process and procurement control procedure,
and incorporates the suppliers’ sustainable development,
environmental protection and production safety performance
into the assessment criteria by signing a social responsibility
commitment letter with them. When selecting a supplier
for raw materials, an assessment on products of suppliers
will be carried out by the examination and approval
department of each factory according to various criteria
including relevant national certifications (such as the ISO
quality management system) for the Group’s final approval.
The Group also regularly verifies, gives feedback on and
evaluates each supplier’s products in areas such as quality,
pricing and environmental protection. Those suppliers which
do not meet the Group’s standards will be disqualified in
due course.

During the year under review, the Group’s subsidiaries
engaged in high-end product accessories manufacturing
have a total of 249 suppliers, including 2 suppliers in
Europe, 3 suppliers in Hong Kong, 2 suppliers in other parts
of Asia, and the remaining of which are in Mainland China.
The Group was not aware of any major non-compliance
incidents or potential significant adverse effects of any
major suppliers in the aspects of environmental protection,
business ethics, employment and labour practices.
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Product Responsibility

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for
watch accessories manufacturing, mainly covering from
the manufacturing of watch accessories and packaging
products to commercial space design, production and
decoration. Companies are mainly located in Suzhou,
Guangzhou and Dongguan. The Group believes that
providing quality products and excellent after-sales service
is a crucial part of its successful corporate presence.

The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing carry out strict quality
management in line with national quality standards. The
watch boxes and other packaging products manufactured
by factories of Artdeco Decorating & Packaging Co., Ltd
have all achieved national FSC and ISO9001:2008 or
ISO9001:2015 and SA8000 certifications, and have also
complied with EU Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006 (REACH).
During the year under review, none of the products sold or
delivered by the Group was recalled on safety and health
grounds. However, customers may submit complaints, and
the Group will conduct an independent investigation and
deal with it in accordance with the internal guidelines.

During the year under review, the Group received 13
customer complaints (2022: 15) over product quality.
Upon timely communication with and explanation offered
to the customers pursuant to the Group’s customer
complaint handling procedures, they were satisfied with our
clarification and arrangements.
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The Group attaches great importance to respecting
and safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict
compliance with “Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests” and other regulations
and laws relating to sale of products to safeguard the
interests of consumers. The Group also fully complies with
the provisions of the “Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance” and other relevant laws and regulations in
collecting consumer information and privacy protection. In
order to ensure that the privacy protection measures are
implemented more effectively and comply with relevant laws
and regulations, the Group also reviews and amends its
measures on safeguarding customer data privacy from time
to time. During the year under review, the Group had no
incidents of breach of customer privacy or loss of customer
information, nor did it receive any confirmed complaints in
connection therewith.

The Group has established and protected its intellectual
properties, including its trademarks and domain names.
In addition, the Group’s domain names are subject to
continuous monitoring and renewal upon expiry.

To protect intellectual property, the Group also follows
the guidance including that of the Copyright Ordinance in
Hong Kong and requires employees not to use or illegally
download and install pirated computer software. The Group’s
IT department is responsible for monitoring relevant matters.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any violations of the regulations governing the provision
and use of the Group’s products and services and had
material effect on the Group, including product and
service information and labels, marketing communications
(advertising, marketing and sponsorship) and intellectual

property.
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Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group abides by
applicable laws and regulations on bribery, fraud and money
laundering in all regions where it operates, including but not
limited to the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance, the China Anti-Unfair Competition Law and the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The
Group advocates a work ethic that insists on compliance
with law, integrity, honesty and professional dedication,
and bans any form of acceptance of advantages or acts of
bribery. Explicit rules concerning employees’ professional
integrity are communicated through the employees’
guidebook, training courses as well as guidelines, for
example, on conflict of interest, while the efficiency of the
Group’s entire internal management system is reviewed
regularly. Channels are also available for employees to
report on internal misconduct. The daily operations of the
Group strictly comply with established procedures; the
internal audit department audits each branch and subsidiary
regularly and timely reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group also commissions
external auditors to carry out independent audits. All these
measures effectively promoted the implementation and
improvement of the Group’s regulatory system. During the
year under review, the Group participated in an online
seminar on combating money laundering and terrorist
financing organized by Companies Registry (Money Lenders
Section) of Hong Kong. The Group was not aware of any
violations of laws and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering that had a significant impact on
the Group, and not involved in any litigation on corruption
relating to the Group or its employees.
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Investment in Community

Hengdeli has always been actively involved in community
and public welfare activities, serving the community,
undertaking corporate social responsibilities proactively and
contributing to society through a variety of welfare platforms
with its own strength.

OUTLOOK

Come rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through
ups and downs. In an environment full of challenges
and uncertainties, we would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to the Board of the Group for their continuous
care and leadership and the full support of stakeholders. In
the future, we will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for our customers, employees, shareholders and
the society, and will seek and capture opportunities to strive
for a harmonious and sustainable development between
the Company and the society, the Company and the
environment, as well as the Company and all related parties
to make our due contributions for the society.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P R

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RESULTS 5 mbdmel —To-f T4 ZEZTFE ZThEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IS ARETT  ARETT ARETI  AR%TR

Note (i)
Bz (i)
Revenue WA 1,421,454 1,259,579 992,962 1,219,856 2,417,181
Profit/(loss) before taxation BALEH /(E8) 33,238 (87,981) 18,701 (354,200) (337,042)
Income tax credit/(expense)  FiEEEE
(F%) 1,953 (158) 1,509 (32,324) 12,925
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHMN/(BR) 35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524) (324,117)
Attributable to: JE1G
Equity shareholders /NS )
of the Company BEA 33,885 (80,022) 26,282 (383,076) (332,520)
Non-controlling interests g 1,306 (8,117) (6,072) (3,448) 8,403
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN/(BR) 35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524) (324,117)
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE TECCF et —ETTE ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IGLEESE ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total assets BERBE 3,599,158 3,525,795 3,531,392 3,628,461 4,641,068
Total liabilities BEEE 353,524 305,961 258,929 188,651 659,481
Net assets BETE 3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587
Total equity attributable VNN
to equity shareholders BB AEL
of the Company =B 3,186,036 3,161,540 3,204,598 3,366,694 3,894,615
Non-controlling interests R = 59,598 58,294 67,865 73,116 86,972
Total equity A 3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587
Note: BaE
(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 on 1 January (i) AEEER=ZZ—NF— A —BERALEET
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under BWEBRERBEBMEREERE165E
this approach, comparative information is not restated. REFRT » EBRER W EET -
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENGDELI HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 97 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

i Goodwill and Property, Plant and Equipment

Refer to Notes 11 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group is required to test the amount of goodwill
for impairment. The Group is also required to test
the amount of property, plant and equipment for
impairment when there is an indication that the
assets may be impaired. These impairment tests
are significant to our audit because the balances
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB52,611,000 and RMB551,137,000
as at 31 December 2023, respectively, are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment tests involve application
of judgement and are based on assumptions and
estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- In respect of properties located in Taiwan,
obtaining the external valuation report, discussing
with the external valuer and challenging
the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations and valuation model;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions; and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment tests for
goodwill and property, plant and equipment are
supported by the available evidence.

Trade receivables

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of trade receivables of
RMB338,540,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of

judgement and is based on estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Checking the computation of the amounts of
expected credit loss allowances;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Fair value measurements of level 3 financial
instruments

Refer to Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group measured the fair value of the level 3
financial instruments. Determination of their fair
values is significant to our audit because the balance
on other investments categorised as Level 3 of
RMB122,484,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s measurement involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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BRAMESAZFEE (AR ERE)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

= Assessing the competence, independence = i EEBEZTREZINBAERD
and integrity of the external valuer engaged by ZEEN ~ WM RHLE
Company;

BERERYNEMTERENE

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation =
model;

B SN 5P {5 (BB & w30 AR 4 (B8

- Discussing with the external valuer and =

challenging the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

Checking key assumptions in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

Testing the evidence supporting the unobservable
inputs in the level 3 fair value measurements;

B R ER TSR
DA Sk 4% ft (B 1870 o 5 P B9 B
B R B

- REGEREPOBERBRENAX

FRE

- ARAF =R AREFETAERE
BARBNSRER R

and

- Assessing the adequacy of the Level 3 = AR E M BRRE=ZRAAE
STERBENEE M

fair value measurement disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement HMRE BEEE EAFEF=FcmT
of the other investments categorised as level 3 EMHEMEEN AR B EEERTEX
financial instruments is supported by the available o

evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION HiEE

The directors are responsible for the other information. ESZ=EHHMEEAS HttEz28EF &4
The other information comprises all the information in ®FEHRANEIBEE @ BT RFBESHBEHRE
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the I MAZERDRS

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does BHFIEHGETHERENESE I T REHME

not cover the other information and we do not express any & @ HIPINTMAEZEEME L BRTMAMFERD
form of assurance conclusion thereon. EEBAETR o
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

and,

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’s website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P07268

Hong Kong
20 March, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

B

H 7 7%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE

Note
i3
Continuing operations SEREET
Revenue N 3
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit ER
Other revenue HAn A 4
Other net loss H B8 F 58 4
Distribution costs 2 SHR AN
Administrative expenses THER
Profit/(loss) from operations R F S (&E)
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & R B A
Finance costs B 75 X AR 5(a)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATDRT (E1E) 5
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe /(FAx) 6
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELSEELN
continuing operations FERA (FHE)
Discontinued operations EARIEREER
Loss for the year from RE BRI EERR
discontinued operations FEREE 30

Profit/(loss) for the year

FEBEF(BE)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 28(b).

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2023
—E=F
RMB’000
AREET T

1,421,454
(1,206,189)

215,265

47,299
(6,394)
(61,100)
(172,805)

22,265

16,358
(5,385)

33,238

1,953

35,191

(AAR¥Z51)

2022
—z——

RMB’000
AREETT

1,039,286
(915,693)

123,693

32,033
(71,691)
(55,481)

(133,323)

(104,869)

76,457
(3,288)

(31,700)

(2,970)

(34,670)

(563,469)

(88,139)

F10722328 2B EMEHEK —3H ©
ENARRIROGFEEARBEFE R ZKEF
BEHRHIE28(b) °

o
Fhr
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A iR AR AR

2023
—E_=F

Note RMB’000
HteE AREET T

1,306

Attributable to: FEAL
Owners of the Company RATEEA
— Continuing operations — BEKEER
— Discontinued operations — BRI EER
Attributable to: FEAL
Non-controlling interests IR
— Continuing operations — B E TS
— Discontinued operations — ERIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBR (FEB)

35,191

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BREAREE

per share BR(&ER)
— Continuing operations — BT
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREEE

10

ARE
RMB
AR

RMB 0.008
AE%  0.0087T

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 28(b).
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2022

RMB’000
ARBETT

(26,553)
(53,469)

(80,022)

(8,117)

(8,117)

(88,139)

RMB (0.006)
AR (0.006)7T
RMB (0.012)
AR (0.012)7T

RMB (0.018)
AR (0.018)7T

F107E232E 2 MBI EM B HRE—3 D ©
JENARRBRGEEABEFE R ZKREFF
BE KT FE28(b) °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1H g S HAR A T A SR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#25)

2023 2022
—E-=F —To—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hia ARET T AREFIT
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA (&HB) 35,191 (88,139)
Other comprehensive income FEAMRZERA (BER
for the year (after tax and EN D ERER)
reclassification adjustments) 9(a)
ltems that may be reclassified R TS ik S ED
subsequently to profit or loss: BmcEE
Exchange differences on translation BMEGINHTE A )
of overseas subsidiaries’ B MR EEZ
financial statements bE i E 5 109,319
Share of associates exchange BB G INETE (G
differences on translating N H =R
foreign operations 7,163
116,482
ltems that will not be reclassified BEEISENSES
subsequently to profit or loss: B=vIER
Equity investments at fair value through  FiBE {2 EWAIR
other comprehensive income — net AREFEZRA
movement in fair value reserves BE - ARERHBED
(non-recycling) FEE (AT AERE) (59,515) (195,425)
Exchange differences on translation of BREBBHEMEEBA
equity investments at fair value RRARERFEZRAR
through other comprehensive income BEMEELZERZHE 6,596 41,156
Exchange differences on translation of BE R QRSB RE
the Company’s financial statements FEA 2B =58 17,538 89,889
(35,381) (64,380)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEWAZEE 25,800 (36,037)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial $107£2328 2 MBI EHHRE—FHH °

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Aok 1R S A 2 T A SR

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Attributable to: Feth
Owners of the Company RAREE A
— continuing operations —BELEER 11,780
— discontinued operations — BRIEEEER (89,510)
(27,730)
Attributable to: i3l
Non-controlling interests FERER
— continuing operations L (8,307)
- discontinued operations — BRIEEEER -
(8,307)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUAEZE (36,037)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e B IR UL

As at 31 December 2023 R=—ZE-—=F+—-_A=+—8H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#275)

2023 2022
—Eo=F === =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties WEYE 11 266,398 126,694
Property, plant and equipment  #)% - [BE k& 11 551,137 512,032
817,535 638,726
Intangible assets mAE 12 2,727 3,415
Goodwill [EES 13 52,611 52,014
Interests in associates RN P - e 15 137,386 132,780
Other investments HMig & 16 368,582 355,331
Prepayment and deposits BNRIEBERIES 18 46,707 1,748
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 27(b)(i) 3,259 2,721
1,428,807 1,186,735
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 17 258,115 237,768
Trade and other receivables FEUL B 5 BR 3k N ELAh e g T8 18 558,072 703,627
Loans to associates IREBES N NRIZER 19 33,789 67,273
Other investments Mg & 16 10,654 7,336
Current tax recoverable ZNHA AT Y (3] £ 38 27(a) 469 168
Deposits with banks RITER 20 318,437 272,701
Cash and cash equivalents HERIHESZEEY 21 990,815 1,050,187
2,170,351 2,339,060
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables and  FEfIE BRI N E A
contract liabilities JENZRIBEBUARANEE 22 226,920 201,935
Bank loans IRITE 23 76,653 56,799
Lease liabilities HERE 24 8,313 10,802
Current taxation R HRFE R IR 27(a) 2,846 4,961
314,732 274,497
Net current assets REEEFE 1,855,619 2,064,563
Total assets less current liabilities & ERABEE 3,284,426 3,251,298
SRR ABRAT R SRR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Aok 1 B B IR L A

Note
k=2
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank loans RITEXR 23
Lease liabilities HEAE 24
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARK#HE
Share capital [N 28(c)
Reserves e

Total equity attributable to equity A2 T RP A ARG

shareholders of the Company TR
Non-controlling interests IR

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARET T

17,483
21,309

38,792

3,245,634

21,254
3,164,782

3,186,036

59,598

3,245,634

2022
e —

—_—

RMB’000
ARETT

24,922
6,542

31,464

3,219,834

21,254
3,140,286

3,161,540

58,294

3,219,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZT_FE=A -+ AEZ =S & LFE

on 20 March 2024. FIED o
Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua R
Executive Director Executive Director NITEE

BEKE
HITEF

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 107 E2328 7 W B i Z 8 1ikk — 25D ©

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

»\/ﬁ

Gxi

VN

£24
i 5

LUIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H,Z T ==+ -A=+—HI-FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZ5I))
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
NN
Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-
‘ , Teserve ‘ i
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Exchange  statutory ~ reserve (1on- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total  interests equity
MBEREE DABRE
R pEEE  (MBA  (FAEA

R RIARE W AXEEB  EXES s E) Ba)  RBET @i ke  EReE

Note RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB000O  RWMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB000

fi ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 31 December 2021~ R=ZE=-£+=ZF

=t-Hz&R 2516 2570571 1582 1328 (382883) 32,004 - 2437 931043 3204598 67865 3272463

Changes in equity for 2022 WZB-CE
Ea2y

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (8002) (80022)  (8117)  (88,139)

Other comprehensive income 2 ENA 9 - - - - A - - (19542) - 5% (190) 52,102

Total comprehensive income SEBAEE - - - - AT - - (19425  (80022) (27,730 (8307)  (36,087)

Shares repurchase BERR (262 (1659) 262 - - - - - - (1659) - (1659)

Transfer between reserves Bz ey - - - - - 259 - - (259) - - -
Acquisiton of additional equity B AT

interest in a subsioliary g - - - 1264 - - - - - 1,264 (1,264) -
Amounts transferred flom falr -~ HERBEENAE
value reserve (non-recycling) T AGTEIN
0 retained profits upon i) BEEREE

disposal of investments flze® - - - - - = - 1872 (1872 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022~ WZZ=Z&+Zf

=t+-Rzt 21,254 2563979 1,844 2592 (135,166) 32,263 - (154,116) 838890 3,161,540 58294 3219834
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARHHEARE

Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-
reserve

Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  statutory reserve Retained controlling

(non-
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total interests

DAfERE
BARD RREE  (TEA
B BiveR [ EARR EXGR B R AR REH i FERER B
Gl RVBOOO RMBOOO RMBOO)  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO
il \RRTL ARETR ARRTL ARBTR ARWTR ARBTR ARRTZ ARBTR ARRTZ ARRTR ARETR ARET:R

Balance at 31 December 2022 W=Z-—%
t=A=t-A
i 21254 2553979 2592 (135,166) (154,116) 838890 3,161,540 58204  3219,834

Changes inequity for 2008~ W=F==%

EngH
Profitfor the year EEEH 33885 33885 1306 35,101
Other comprehensive income ~ Et2ERA 9 - (9,389) @ (939
Total comprehensive income ~ 2ERALE 24,4% 1304 25800

Transfer between reserves [k fEh
Amounts transferred from far ~ HERARE

value reserve (nonrecycing) — AAfERE

to retained profits upon (TTEAER)
disposal of investments EEERE
aflze8 (38,730)

Balance at 31 December 2023  W=5==%
t=A=1-A
i3 21254 2,553,979 1,844 2,592 (85,040) 37847 (174,901) 828461 3,186,036 59,598 3,245,634

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 210722328 2 Bt EFHHzk —HD °
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Tax refund
Tax paid

KERE

BEMSRS
B
BENHIA

Net cash generated from
operating activities

REFRHFEREFHE

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
investment properties,
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant, equipment and
intangible assets
Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets
(Increase)/decrease in deposits
with banks
Payment for advances to third parties
Proceeds from repayment of
advances to third parties
Payment for acquisition of associates
Payment for advances to associates
Proceeds from repayment of
advances to associates
Payment for purchase of
other investments
Proceeds from sale of
other investments
Interest received
Dividends received from
an associate
Dividends received from
equity investments

REZE

BAREDE W%
B 55 B2 s 4 19 35K

HEME - BE &
N AR B EFR{S50R

BABTEENNK
RITFR (), WL

XNE=TEHK
EBRE=FEN
PIEEE/

LG g NCIE N PN
AV E R BB
EE R E DR BR
PIEEE/

BAEMBENR

hEE MR E PSR

REE)s)
Bl — M E R RIRE

EWBEARER R

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

RETH (FTA)/ Fis
BEFH

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#25)
2023 2022
—=E_= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYEET T ARBTIT

239,057
38

(1,709)

237,386

(215,890) (58,305)
13,621 44

(18) (1,447)
(40,471) 25,821

(51,297)

96,288

(3)

(86,694)

34,589 104,024

(108,648) (13,427)
42,478 28,891
30,547 15,400
14,367 B
4,989 9,298
(164,121) 68,593
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

maBlaiigR

2023 2022
—E_= ==
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARBT T ARBTT
Financing activities RIEEED
Proceeds from new bank loans FIMBITERATISHE  21(c) 72,900 54,900
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER 21(c) (60,876) (46,665)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EffHAEHEEH
B REB S 21(c) (11,509) (12,736)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREH
MBS 21(c) (388) (656)
Other borrowing costs paid B EMmEERA (3,536) (2,708)
Share repurchased BE B A% (5 = (16,592)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BIE EEFTiEIR & F4E (8,409) (24,457)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEE&FIRESEEY
cash equivalents CRA) /12 hnS4E (84,238) 281,522
Cash and cash equivalents REPDZRER
at the beginning of the year R EEY 1,050,187 661,017
Effect of foreign exchange HMESTE RS B S/
rate changes 107,648
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at the end of the year HEZEEY 21(a) 1,050,187

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 510722328 2 MiFE Bt TR #EK —af D -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i R T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& ZEEAS) « BEEUARE27)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Exchange”). Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

1 EBEASHEXE

(a) BHIZEHH
WERBRRIVBBEEEGAMAE ([FEE
AHEIRR ) BOEMAAER(EENBREE
AN ([BEWBHRELEN] - ZFcERRHME
EROEREEM GRS ER (BESHE
AD(TEEEER]) k)  BEAREG
FRANRE RCEBRAGDD) NEERE R
B WERBRRNMTEBEEHREXIMER
RE (MR Fx MR EREER
E o AREMRANEXNSTTRREENT -

BEGMARERME TRAKEAS
BB R AR A IR BT IR M B ¥ AT G ERT &
B EMEER - EE1(c) P BN UL FF R
R BR 2 TR Ko B 1 & 5 B H R BR M % F B R
=B AR G ET R PTE R I & 5T R &
B2ER -

(b) BIBEEMEREE
HE-FT-=F+-AZ+—ALFRENE
HEBRRETENERARAR ((ARF))
RAEMBAR (5578 [A%E)) -

AN
=]

MEMBBRAAIAEEEREL KA
HETXAESFTBRREAZAEAAREIRZ
BERIN

s,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

- equity investments (see note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 EBEAXESEE 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(p) or 1(q) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

unless the investment is classified

classified as held for sale).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 1(l)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial

ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in that associate
and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are in